» o

Vs

| 8
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public meeting of

Planning Committee

To: Councillors Fisher (Chair), Ayre, Barker, D'Agorne,
Daubeney, Doughty, Douglas, Fenton, Hollyer, Looker,
Lomas, Melly, Pavlovic (Vice-Chair), Warters and
Waudby
Date: Thursday, 5 May 2022
Time: 4.30 pm
Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West
Offices (F045)
AGENDA
1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any disclosable
pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might have in respect
of business on this agenda, if they have not already done so in advance
on the Register of Interests.
2. Minutes (Pages 1 -8)
To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the Planning
Committee held on 7 April 2022.
3. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have registered to
speak can do so. Members of the public may speak on agenda items or on
matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at remote meetings. The deadline
for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Tuesday 3 May 2022.

www.york.gov.uk



To register to speak please visit www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
to fill in an online registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic Services.
Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will be
webcast, including any registered public speakers who have given their
permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on demand at
www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

4. Plans List

This item invites Members to determine the following planning
applications:

a) Alton Cars York Ltd, 3 James Street, York YO10 3WW
[22/00367/FULM] (Pages 9 - 60)

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site for purpose-
built student accommodation with up to 303 bedrooms, associated
communal facilities, car parking and landscaping (resubmission) [Guildhall
Ward]

5. Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the Local
Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer
Angela Bielby
Contact details:
e Telephone: 01904 552599
e Email: a.bielby@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please
contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for
servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.



http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMEAEMNESRHEEREESS (cantonese)
I3 52T AN NS ST (7T (TCS 2t | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

: (Polish)
wiasnym jezyku.

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
'dﬁt;él?tﬂ_/”(f w(df)c)tﬁdi'u{~.;'7&L)‘”: (Urdu)
4@ (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee

Date 7 April 2022

Present Councillors Fisher (Chair), D'Agorne,

Doughty, Douglas, Fenton, Pavlovic (Vice-
Chair), Warters, Waudby, Widdowson
(Substitute for ClIr Ayre), Perrett (Substitute
for Clir Melly) and Hunter (Substitute for Clir
Daubeney

Apologies Councillors Barker, Daubeney, Hollyer,

Looker and Lomas

76.

77.

78.

Declarations of Interest

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting,
any personal interests, not included on the Register of Interests,
or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they may
have in respect of business on the agenda. Clir D’Agorne
declared a non-prejudicial interest as a Director of the York
Business Improvement District (BID) Board. There were no
further declarations of interest declared.

Minutes

Resolved:

I.  That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 February
2022 be approved and then signed by the chair as a
correct record subject to the beginning of the first
sentence under public speakers changing to ‘A
Member spoke in objection to the application.’

ii.  That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2022
be approved.

Public Participation

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on
general matters within the remit of the Planning Committee.



79.

80.

Page 2

Plans List

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of
Planning and Development Services, relating to the following
planning applications, outlining the proposals and relevant
policy considerations and setting out the views of consultees
and officers.

Spark York, Piccadilly, York [22/00195/FUL]

Members considered a full application from Samuel Leach for
the variation of condition 2 of permitted application
17/00274/FUL to extend duration of permission to 30
September 2025 at Spark York, Piccadilly, York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services gave a
presentation on the application. She then updated Members on
the list of operators, and further representations that had been
received from Spark, York BID, Make it York (MiY) and an
interested party.

Public Speakers

CliIr Fitzpatrick (Ward Member) explained her request for the
application to be determined by the Committee as it was in the
public interest. She explained that as a resident of the city
centre as with residents near Spark, noise was expected. She
suggested that the use of the community room at Spark was
reactive, and speaking on behalf of Walmgate Community
Association (not present at the meeting) she added that there
had been no proactive attempt to involve them.

In answer to Member questions, ClIr Fitzpatrick noted that:

e A WhatsApp (social media) group had been created for
Spark and local residents, however, the residents’ concerns
on that group were not recorded by the Council (although the
information had been provided to the Council). This included
complaints about noise and food odour. She added that a
number of residents felt that communication had fallen down
and she confirmed she was speaking on behalf of Walmgate
Community Association. She noted that Spark management
needed to be more robust.



Page 3

e Neighbours would like the sound off at 9pm and wanted
conditions to be enforced.

A Member thanked ClIr Fitzpatrick for determination of the
application by Committee.

Matthew Laverack spoke in objection to the application noting
previous offers for use of the site. He expressed dislike for the
appearance of the containers for being out of character for the
area. He suggested that there needed to be an independent
enquiry into Spark. He stated that the recommendation (to
approve the application) failed on planning policy and he
requested refusal of the application on the basis of harm to the
conservation area and detriment to residents’ amenity.

Yvonne van Zeller (the closest residential neighbour to Spark)
detailed the impact of the application on neighbouring
properties. She noted as a matter of record that she had been
an original supporter of Spark. She noted that certain operators
at Spark would like to be good neighbours and concerning and
privacy, Spark was in the process of addressing this with a
screen. She added that Spark had made a practical
demonstration of addressing residents’ feedback. She
concluded that the extension of planning permission for 18
months, with a compliant business plan and properly managed
exit would give residents peace of mind for the future. She was
asked and explained the timeline for the request and
implementation of the privacy screen.

Sam Leach (Applicant) spoke in support of the application. He
expressed concern about proposed condition 4 regarding no
amplified sound in external areas after 9.00pm on Sundays,
Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays. He outlined
the businesses supporting the application, and the community
space and community farm. He noted that neighbour relations
were strong and a positive meeting with them in March. He
added that there had been improved privacy for Mawson Court.
Referring to the 9pm music curfew (condition 4) he explained
that there had been no noise complaints for the last two years,
adding that the condition would threaten viability of the
operation. He asked that the application be approved without
that condition.

Sam Leach was asked and explained that:



Page 4

With regard to good relations with neighbours it was not fair
to suggest that a number of residents did not want to attend
the meeting as they had gone on public record via their
submissions to the planning portal; it was fair to suggest that
some residents did not want Spark there. He added that
Spark supported economic growth and the best way forward
was to continue dialogue with residents. He noted that there
had been no complaints to Public Protection.

He was asked why they would be after previous planning
conditions had not been met. Referring to the privacy
screens he explained that there was no unanimous
consensus amongst residents. He noted that regarding
residents, communication had improved by immediate
conversations. He added that it was not fair to suggest they
were at odds with residential amenity.

The opening hours had never changed and the busiest
period was 6.30pm to 9.00pm.

Concerning the provision of music after 9pm on Friday and
Saturday, 9.00pm to 10.00pm was still important to
businesses for their viability and it was a popular venue
during the week.

Giving residents more certainty about the 18 month planning
permission extension, and the timeline for the ending of
leases had helped with working to an end date.

The 2017 planning permission in 2017 did not include a
condition for the sound off at 9.00pm, it was related to the
vacating of seating areas. They also now used localised
smaller speakers and the July 2021 breach of condition when
investigated showed no breach of condition.

Regarding the suggested 20% loss of turnover from turning
the music off at 9.00pm, there was no evidence and it was
felt that music was essential to the operation.

With reference to the 46 complaints on the WhatsApp group,
in the last 6 months, three had been about music with the
vast majority being related to the quiz on a Wednesday night.
There was one complaint about music post 9.00pm.

Music was not audible in the boundaries of properties. If
there was no music this would affect the feel of the venue.

The Head of Planning and Development Services clarified the
breach of conditions notice served and the Senior Solicitor
confirmed that the notice was for breach of condition 1 — plans,
condition2 — fencing/boundaries, condition 4 — area open to
customers, and condition 6 — playing or recorded/amplified
music. The Head of Planning and Development Services had



Page 5

written to them twice, which was followed up by two further
letters arising from further issues.

Questions then resumed to the Applicant, Sam Leach. He was
asked and confirmed that the quiz was held 7.00pm to 8.45pm
Wednesdays and the 9pm music condition would not affect this.
He added that the reference to noise in the breach of condition
was related to food extraction.

[The meeting adjourned at 5.38pm and resumed at 5.45pm]

Andrew Lowson spoke on behalf of York BID in support of the
application. He explained that the business community
welcomed the application, noting that Spark was innovative and
offered a flexible working space. He listed the groups using the
community room, and noted that Spark was food led. He noted
that the 9pm music condition was restrictive and that there had
been no noise complaints. He noted that Spark brought a
unique experience was a community asset. When asked about
other open air venues in the locality he listed the Red Lion and
Walmgate Ale House, noting that Spark was different to them.

Nigel Wilson, a local resident, spoke in support of the
application. He explained that his experience as a resident had
been good and spark provided a venue that York didn’t have.
He noted that Piccadilly was moving towards being a vibrant
residential quarter. He was asked and confirmed that he had
lived at there for three years and was aware that Spark would
not be there forever.

Geoff Beacon, a local resident before and after Spark was
introduced, spoke in support of the application. He noted that he
hardly ever found the noise objectionable, rarely hearing the
music and quiz, which had also rarely irritated him. He added
that there was a barrier between his residence and Spark and
he hadn’t smelt food odours much over the last month. He noted
that Spark customers were nice and it made Piccadilly a much
better environment. He suggested consulting with the police
architect about the site. He was asked if he would have
concerns if the application was not granted or was granted for a
shorter period of time and he noted that the site provided natural
policing.

Louise Warnes, a local resident, spoke in support of the
application. She explained that the noise emitted from the site



Page 6

was a background hum and that the noise from the quiz had
been a bone of contention. She also didn’t see how the
reduction of noise to 9.00pm would help. She felt that Spark
was positive for the community and was concerned that if Spark
went the site would be derelict.

Cllr K Taylor spoke in support of the application. He began
noting that there had clearly been issues with Spark and their
neighbours over the last few years. He explained that the Spark
offered a free space for creatives and community groups. He
expressed concern regarding the 9.00pm noise condition which
he believed to be excessive and would have consequences for
Spark. He suggested that 10.00pm would be more of a
compromise.

Members then asked Officer further questions for clarification.
The Head of Planning and Development Services was asked
and clarified that:

e The breach of condition notice was served in February 2020.
In summer 2021 there were further complaints regarding
noise and odour which was followed up with reminder letters
regarding breach of conditions.

e The council was not connected to the WhatsApp group and
complaints needed to go through formal enforcement
process.

e Condition 4 was clarified.

¢ Notification of site visits for breach of conditions were not
given.

e Reminder letters for breach of conditions were issues on July
and September 2021. No further action was taken following
this.

e The Public Protection Officer explained that noise emitted
during his evening visit to Spark with Planning Enforcement
in 2020 was in breach of planning conditions but was not a
statutory nuisance. He explained how complaints for
statutory nuisance were investigated and that the breach
investigated was for amplified music. The Head of Planning
and Development Services then clarified that officers
monitored the breach of conditions following the further
complaints that had been received. There had been no
complaints since then.

Head of Planning and Development Services was then asked
and clarified:



Page 7

e |t was felt that the 9.00pm music condition was reasonable
following the issues with amplified music.

e Each planning application was considered on its own merits.

e There had been issues with the applicant over the past 5
years and they had been served with a breach of condition
notice. There had been no further complaints following the
reminder letters.

e Break Clauses had been included in the lease should a
scheme come forward for development on the site. The time
periods for this were outlined to Members. The Chair and
Senior Solicitor confirmed that the lease was not a planning
matter.

e The planning conditions were specific to the site.

e Members were reminded of the NPPF guidance on
temporary planning permission.

Following debate ClIr Fenton moved approval of the temporary
planning permission with Condition 4 amended to:

At all times there shall be no playing of amplified sound
(including speech and recorded music) that would exceed
background noise levels at the site boundary with noise
sensitive receptors.

There shall be no playing of amplified sound (including speech
and recorded music) in external areas after 22:00 on Sundays,
Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays.

This was seconded by Clir D’Agorne. Members voted 10 in
favour of the motion and 3 against, it was therefore:

Resolved: That the application for temporary planning
permission be approved subject to the conditions
listed in the report, and the following amendment to
Condition 4:

At all times there shall be no playing of amplified
sound (including speech and recorded music) that
would exceed background noise levels at the site
boundary with noise sensitive receptors.

There shall be no playing of amplified sound
(including speech and recorded music) in external
areas after 22:00 on Sundays, Mondays, Tuesdays,
Wednesdays and Thursdays.

Reason:
I.  In principle the use of the site is consistent with the
economic and town centre policies in the NPPF. The use,



Page 8

on a temporary basis, is also not in conflict with local
policies regarding such, including the strategic strategy for
Castle Gateway. Issues around residential amenity and
flood risk can be controlled reasonably through planning
conditions.

ii. There is less than substantial harm to the appearance of
the conservation area; at the lower end of such harm. In
giving weight to such, the Council has a statutory duty
(under section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990) to consider the desirability
of preserving or enhancing the character and appearance
of designated conservation areas. NPPF para. 199
requires great weight should be given to an asset’s
conservation (and the more important the asset, the
greater the weight should be).

lii. The identified harm to the conservation area must be
balanced against the public benefits. The identified
benefits in this case outweigh the low level of harm to the
conservation area, which are to its appearance only and
not its character. This conclusion takes into account that
the harm is temporary (whilst the area is in transition) and
contained to a character area that, as stated in the area
appraisal, does not have the obvious architectural interest
of other parts of the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area, and has no “buildings of merit” or strengths”.

Cllr T Fisher, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30pm and finished at 7.00pm].



Page 9 Agenda ltem 4a
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 5 May 2022 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 22/00367/FULM

Application at: Alton Cars York Ltd 3 James Street York YO10 3WW

For: Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site for

purpose-built student accommodation with up to 303no.
bedrooms, associated communal facilities, car parking and
landscaping (resubmission)

By: Mr Gavin Douglas
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 23 May 2022

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 This is a resubmission of application 21/02164/FULM for student
accommodation (PBSA) refused by Planning Committee on 3.2.2022.

1.2 The revised scheme proposes 231 study bedrooms (in clusters of up to 8 with
shared living/dining areas) and 72 individual studio rooms. The building contains
communal areas at ground floor - up to 277 sq m and over 1,100 sq m of soft
landscaped areas, including a public park on the south-east corner of the site. The
proposed building ranges in height between 3 and 5 storey.

1.3 The reasons for refusal of application 21/02164/FULM are set out below.

- The proposals due to the amount of development proposed, and its scale, height
and layout, would be over-development of the site which would have an undue
adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents.

- The proposed development, by virtue of its amount, scale and footprint would
overdevelop the site. The consequent building would be over-bearing and over-
dominant, and unduly imposing on its setting. It would provide an inadequate
amount of public realm and soft landscaping to enable it to assimilate into its
setting.

- The proposed development would provide an inadequate level of amenity for its
future residents due to the inadequate amount of floorspace within the proposed
student bedrooms and the inadequacy of the proposed layouts.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 10

1.4 To address the reasons for refusal, the resubmitted scheme contains the
following amendments. These are appraised in section 5 under the headings of
design, impact on neighbours amenity and highway safety and sustainable travel

Public Open space and landscaping

- South facing public open space introduced - over 200 sg m of public open space
in the south east corner of the site, prominent along James Street.

- The scheme provides over 1,100 sqg m of soft landscaping overall.

Cycle lane
- A strip of land along James Street is offered up to become adopted highway.

This will enable a 3.5m wide shared path for pedestrians and cyclists. This would
be combined with modifications to kerb radii with a more generous footpath and
new segregated raised priority crossings at the Brinkworth Terrace and Elvington
Terrace junctions. The works would calm traffic speeds and provide enhanced
facilities for pedestrians and cyclists. Details are annotated on the site plan, have
been discussed with highways officers prior to submission and would be subject
to highways approval.

Accommodation schedule

- Number of student rooms reduced from 319 to 303. The number of accessible
rooms is unchanged and 5.8% of overall provision (5% being a Building
Regulations requirement).

- All studio rooms are over 20 sg m in area, which is either comparable or larger
than other approved PBSA schemes. The study rooms within cores (clusters
with up to 8 bedrooms) include communal living/dining rooms which average 36
sg m. The rooms exceed significantly, minimum bedroom standards for Houses
in Multiple Occupation (HMO) accommodation (local licensing standards). All
rooms have access to the on-site open space and 277 sq m of internal communal
areas.

Building scale
- The amendments reduce the footprint of the building, removing development
from the south east corner.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (‘NPPF’) key sections are as follows —

5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

9 Promoting sustainable transport

11 Making effective use of land

12  Achieving well-designed places

14  Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 11

2.2 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 (‘2018 eLP') was submitted
for examination on 25 May 2018. In accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF its
policies can be afforded weight according to:

- The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given);

- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012.

2.3 Key relevant 2018 eLP policies are as follows -

DP3 Sustainable Communities

D1 Place-making

D6 Archaeology

EC2 Loss of employment land

CC1 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage
ENV1 Air Quality

ENV5 Sustainable Drainage

H7  Student Housing

HW1 Protecting Existing Facilities

T1 Sustainable Access

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

Archaeology

3.1 Planning conditions are required to secure an archaeological investigation
(written scheme of investigation previously approved) and approval of the foundation
design. The latter to preserve 95% of the archaeological deposits on the site (in
accordance with policy D6 of the 2018 eLP).

3.2 The area contains a significant archaeological resource within 1-2m of the
modern ground surface. No investigation has taken place within the proposed site
boundary. It is anticipated that the southern half of the site has the most
archaeological potential — in particular areas which haven’t been previously
disturbed. The construction of the extant building and the 19th century terraced
housing, which existed on the site until the late 20th century, is likely to have had a
negative impact on any archaeological resource. However, there are some areas
within the site which may have escaped the most damaging impact of these
developments.

Ecology

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 12

3.3 No objection. Recommend conditions regarding nesting birds and biodiversity
enhancement / net gain, the latter including the provision of bat and bird boxes.

Public Protection

3.4 Noise — require implementation of the sound attenuation measures detailed in
the noise assessment supplied (prior to occupation and permanently retained
thereatfter).

3.5 Construction Management - As there are commercial and residential properties
close-by recommend controls be put in place to minimise noise, vibration and dust
during demolition and construction.

3.6 Land contamination — the submitted risk assessment recommends site
investigation to determine a remediation strategy. This is acceptable and conditions
are recommended.

3.7 Electric Vehicles - ask for one of the car parking spaces to be exclusively for the
use of electric vehicles. A further space should have “passive” provision.

Highway Network Management

3.8 No response. At pre-application stage officers made the following points -
Vehicles should be able to access/egress the service area in a forward gear.
Adequate cycle parking must be provided.

Waste Services

3.9 The bin store in the application is significantly too small. City of York Council will
not collect waste from the site if our waste management requirements are not
satisfactorily achieved; it will be the responsibility of site management to arrange an
alternative waste collection service. The bin store is also a long distance from the
residential areas. Bin storage areas should be easily accessible for the dwellings
that they serve, a travel distance of no further than 30m is recommended.

Guildhall Planning Panel

3.10 The addition of the small park in the south east corner of the site is welcome.
However, the building is too high and too close to the western boundary and
dominates the flats to the west. Still think this is an overdevelopment of the site.

Designing out Crime Officer

3.11 No objection. The Design and Access Statement submitted with the
application shows clearly that the applicant has considered crime prevention.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 13

Yorkshire Water

3.12 If water discharge to public sewer is proposed, the information must include
evidence that other means of (sustainable) surface water drainage have been
properly considered and why they have been discounted. The means of discharging
to the public sewer network at a maximum rate of 33 (thirty-three) litres per second
are required. Detalils to be agreed (by condition) by the Local Planning Authority in
consultation with the statutory sewerage undertaker.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

York Civic Trust

4.1 Several aspects of this proposal are welcomed and offer better design quality
than other recent student accommodation schemes proposed in York. Welcome the
inclusion of the 'pocket park' to the southern end of the site and the associated
public realm improvements. However, the Trust is unable to support the application
in its current form due to shortcomings in the design, choice of materials, and
internal layout of the scheme (as set out below).

Massing and design
4.2 The massing and design profile of the proposed building sit well in the context of
the surrounding area.

4.3 Recommended setting the bay above the main entrance back, so it were less
prominent and disruptive of the remainder of the building line. (Officer note — the
amended scheme implements this recommendation).

4.4 The proposed building does maximise the use of the site. While the area of
proposed planting along the James Street elevation has been enlarged, it is still
unlikely to be sufficient to mitigate this. Reducing the depth of both the central
entrance bay, the gable ends on the James Street elevation, and the protruding
bays on the Elvington Terrace elevation would help create an additional sense of
space between the site boundary and the building while maintaining the regular
rhythm of the elevations. The dormers on the central bay of the James Street
elevation are heavy and overstated.

Materials

4.5 Questions whether the roofing material would be better suited as uniformly
pantiles, rather than split between pantiles and slate as proposed. Brick is a
similarly positive choice and the variance in colour adds additional design interest.

Layout

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 14

4.6 The provision of indicative room layouts is welcomed and provides a greater
understanding of how rooms will be configured to ensure all appropriate amenities
are in place. The provision of internal measurements is a clarification which is also
welcomed. A revised scheme might aim to avoid the use of parallel corridors so as
to provide simpler access. More access points to the cycle store recommended, so
it does not become congested at peak times.

Conservation Areas Advisory Panel

4.7 The panel advises their comment on the previous application were as follows —
“The panel had no objection to this scheme and noted that it was of a higher
standard in terms of space and student facilities than many recent similar schemes.
The elevations were well modulated with an easily identified main entrance. It was
not felt to be detrimental to the appearance of the Conservation Area”. However,
the application was refused. This new application is virtually the same except for a
small reduction in the building footprint at the southeast corner and an adjustment to
the western elevation. The Panel therefore saw no reason to recommend approval
of the scheme. The Panel recommend mandatory minimum space standards need
to be set either locally by the City of York Council or nationally to ensure the
wellbeing of the students.

Other responses to publicity

4.8 No other representations have been made.
5.0 APPRAISAL

Key issues

5.1 The key issues in assessment of this scheme are -

- Principle of the proposed development

- Where there is impact on the Central Historic Core Conservation Area
- Design of the proposed building

- Neighbours amenity

- Highway safety and sustainable travel

- Public protection

- Archaeology

- Drainage

Principle of the proposed development

Loss of the employment use

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 15

5.2 2018 eLP policy EC2 advises that loss of employment land is appropriate where

- the existing land and/or buildings are demonstrably not viable in terms of market
attractiveness, business operations, condition and/or compatibility with adjacent
uses; and

- the proposal would not lead to the loss of an employment site that is necessary to
meet employment needs during the plan period.

5.3 Policy EC1 identifies the need for each type of employment use over the
emerging plan period and allocates adequate land to meet demand. The allocations
are more desirable compared to the application site taking into consideration
sustainable transport links for office type uses, logistics for storage / distribution and
compatibility with neighbours for industrial uses. The former site operator has
relocated to what it considers a preferable site, in terms of operationally and
logistically.

5.4 The loss of employment land primarily must be assessed against NPPF policy.
NPPF Paragraph 122 requires that planning decisions “reflect changes in the
demand for land”. Paragraph 123 states Local Planning Authorities “should take a
positive approach to applications for alternative uses of land which is developed and
not allocated for a specific purpose in plans, where this would help to meet identified
development needs... In particular they should support proposals to use retail and
employment land for homes in areas of high housing demand, provided this would
not undermine key economic sectors or sites or the vitality and viability of town
centres”.

5.5 The NPPF places a strong emphasis on re-using sites such as this for
residential development where there is need. There is evidently a trend in re-using
former industrial land in the Walmgate, Lawrence Street and Layerthorpe areas for
residential/student use, which has been beneficial to regeneration and the vitality
and viability of the city centre, and not evidentially undermined key economic
sectors.

5.6 The loss of employment land is not objected to on the following grounds —

- When the lease for Alton Cars was expiring the site was marketed and the only
interest was from developers of student housing.

- The former business on-site has relocated to a preferable location.

- The emerging local plan allocates adequate land to meet employment needs,
which are in locations better suited to employers needs compared to the
application site.

- Due to the scale and location of the site, it is unlikely to be redeveloped as offices
(evidenced by the inquiries made for the site when it was marketed).

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 16

- Industrial or noisy commercial activity on-site would be incompatible with the
residential uses to the south and west of the site.

- Planning permission has been recently granted for change of use of multiple
former industrial or commercial premises along James Street which sets a
precedent and demonstrates the extent of housing need. Sites include - James
House (initially office to residential under permitted development rights), the
multiple phases of the Brickworks Student Accommodation scheme at James
Street / Redeness Street and residential development at 1 Redeness Street.

- The Council’'s economic development team have been consulted and not raised
objection to the application.

Proposed use

5.7 The site is previously developed and in a sustainable urban location. The
proposed re-use of the site in principle conforms with NPPF section 11, which
requires planning decisions should:-

- Promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses,
while safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy
living conditions (paragraph 119).

- Give substantial weight to the value of using suitable brownfield land within
settlements for homes and other identified needs (paragraph 120).

- Take a proactive role in identifying and helping to bring forward land that may be
suitable for meeting development needs (paragraph 121).

- Take a positive approach to applications for alternative uses of land, where it is
developed but not allocated for a specific purpose in plans, where this would help
to meet identified development needs. (paragraph 123).

5.8 NPPF policy on decision making (in paragraph 38) states local planning
authorities should approach decisions on proposed development in a positive and
creative way. Decision-makers at every level should seek to approve applications for
sustainable development where possible.

5.9 Policy H7 Student Housing within the 2018 eLP carries limited weight in
decision-making at this stage as the emerging plan is not adopted and there are
objections to the policy. It is against the NPPF policies this proposal should
principally be assessed. H7 states proposals for new student accommodation will
be supported where:

- there is a proven need for student housing; and

- itis in an appropriate location for education institutions and accessible by
sustainable transport modes; and

- development would not be detrimental to the amenity of nearby residents and the
design and access arrangements would have a minimal impact on the local area.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 17

5.10 The scheme does not conflict with 2018 eLP policy H7. The assessment
against the first two points are below. The impact on amenity and highways are
dealt with the sections below on Neighbours Amenity and Highway Safety and
Sustainable Travel

- Despite the number of recent applications, there remains demonstrable need for
student housing. The amount of purpose built student accommodation (PBSA),
operated by the university and other operators, including permissions yet to be
implemented, would accommodate under 50% of students (in full time education).

- The site is in an appropriate location for student accommodation. Nearby around
Navigation Road, Walmgate, Lawrence Street and James Street are multiple
large-scale PBSA developments which provide essentially car free developments
due to their accessibility.

Impact on the Central Historic Core Conservation Area

5.11 The site is outside of, but adjacent to, the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area. The Council has a statutory duty (under section 72 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990) to consider the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of designated Conservation
Areas.

5.12 Of the Central Historic Core Conservation Area, the Walmgate Bar Character
Area lies to the south and west of the application site and includes the terrace of
19th Century houses along Foss Islands Road and the frontage buildings on the
north side of Lawrence Street terminating at James Street. St Lawrence’s Church is
also within the conservation area. The church is listed at grade Il and identified as a
landmark building in the conservation area appraisal. The character area appraisal
identifies the key qualities of this character area as being —

- The 18" century former houses on the north side of Lawrence Street, which are
Grade Il listed.

- Walmgate Bar, which has the last remaining barbican in the city.

- St Lawrence’s Church, a large landmark in the area. The Church possesses
group value with those buildings already in the Conservation Area. The
churchyard provides a setting for this group of buildings and positively contributes
to the appearance of the character area.

5.13 Analysis provided with the application illustrates the impact of the scheme
when viewed in juxtaposition with the Central Historic Core Conservation Area. The
analysis takes into consideration views from the east, from the City Walls, along the
outer ring road (from where there are views of the walls and the spire of the Grade I
listed St Lawrence’s Church) and from Lawrence Street to the south.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 18

5.14 In views from the City Walls and the inner ring road there would be glimpsed
views of the proposed building beyond the Waitrose service yard and the
neighbouring 15 Foss Islands Road (the latter has been subject an application for
redevelopment - 21/01854/FULM - which was withdrawn). There would be no effect
on the prominence of the church spire on the skyline.

5.15 From both the east and south existing views are towards the warehouse type,
and utilitarian buildings, along James Street. In views the building’s scale would be
complimentary to foreground buildings. There would be no harm to the setting of
the conservation area. The proposed building scale would enable it to blend in with
its surrounds and the architecture is more closely related to the conservation area
setting compared to existing views, towards warehouse type buildings found along
James Street.

Design

5.16 NPPF paragraph 130 sets out design considerations. Paragraph 131 now
emphasises the importance of trees in urban environments and recommends they
are incorporated into developments. Paragraph 130 advises developments should —

- function well and add to the overall quality of the area over the lifetime of the
development;

- be visually attractive

- be sympathetic to local character

- make effective use of the site

- create places which are safe, inclusive, promote health and well-being, and with
a high standard of amenity

5.17 In respect on design, the grounds for refusal of the previous scheme referred to
over-development and a lack of green space. To this effect it was deemed the
development would not add to the overall quality of the area.

Layout

5.18 The layout now proposes development of less of the site and a public open
space has been added on the south east side of the site. The open space is some
200 sg m in area, can accommodate tree planting and provides useable space.
This feature coupled with the proposed highway improvements, making the setting
more pedestrian friendly, constitutes a significant improvement over the existing
setting.

Materials

5.19 The outward facing elevations will comprise of two brick types; orange and
brown multi types and the roofs typically red clay tile. The taller section, which

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 19

identifies the entrance, varies in its appearance, using slate roof tiles. The building
has varying eaves and ridge heights and facade treatments, creating a rhythm and
vertical emphasis to the facades, reflective of the streetscene along Lawrence
Street. The objection by the Civic Trust to the use of metal cladding has been noted
and this section of the building is, in the revised scheme recessive not pronounced.
The metal cladding is very limited and not objected to. More traditional materials are
prevalent on the proposed building and metal cladding is found on various other
schemes nearby.

Scale

5.20 The proposed building is between 3 and 5 storey high. The perceived scale
would be moderated by the varied massing and the presence of the apartment
blocks to the west. The building heights and impact on the housing to the west of
the site is unchanged since the previous scheme. The west elevation is some 3.8m
from the boundary, to allow landscaping to lessen the impact. The previous refusal
referred to over-development. The committee in determining the previous
application made no reference to the building being too tall in any particular location.
The Civic Trust and Conservation Areas Advisory Panel (the latter in commenting on
the previous application) both consider the building height acceptable. The scale of
the building has been further reduced since, due to the reduction in footprint and
omission of the 3-storey projecting metal clad oriel bay above the James Street
entrance.

5.21 At the south end of the site the building height steps down to 3-storey; the
elevation fronting James Street is generally 3-storey. Toward the centre of the site
(where the entrance is positioned) there is an increase in height and the building
steps up to 4-storey on the north wing, along Elvington Terrace. The apartments to
the west are 4-storey also. On the west side of the site, opposite the neighbouring
housing, the proposed building would be taller than its neighbour, as there is
accommodation at 5" floor level. This is within the roof and setback typically 2m or
3m from the main facade. As such the building would be perceived as of similar
scale to the dwellings to the west and not excessive.

Proposed accommodation

5.22 The accommodation proposed would provide reasonable levels of amenity for
future occupants. There are a mix of studio rooms (72) and clusters (231). There
are up to 8 rooms per cluster, sharing a communal kitchen / living area. Communal
areas are typically around 36 sq m per cluster. As a comparison, the bedrooms
exceed the local HMO licensing requirements that bedrooms must be over 6.5 sgq m.
The clusters (in area) would comply with the national space standards
recommendations for homes with a comparable number of bedrooms/residents.

The applicants have provided typical room layouts, including rooms within the roof
(where studio rooms are between 23-27sq m), which illustrate rooms are fit for

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 20

purpose and would provide reasonable amenity. The accommodation is larger or
comparable in area to multiple other PBSA schemes approved by the authority.
These include recent schemes at Frederick House (Fulford Road), Aubrey House
(Foss Islands), Mecca (Fishergate) and Student accommodation at Mansfield Street.

5.23 The scheme includes two landscaped courtyards and a public park by the
corner of James Street and Brinkworth Terrace. There is over 1,100sg m outside
amenity space in the scheme. Internally at ground floor level are communal areas,
which can be used by all residents. The communal areas provide some 277 sq.m
floorspace overall and provide amenities such as common room/games room;
cinema; gym; study; laundry. These facilities are provided at ground floor level close
to the building entrance and adjacent the James Street frontage.

Sustainable design / construction

5.24 Local requirements for buildings in terms of addressing climate change are
2018 eLP policies CC1 and CC2, which seek to secure enhancements over the
2013 Building Regulations. New buildings are expected to have a dwelling emission
rate (DER) that is a 28% improvement over the 2013 regulations.

5.25 The developer is aware of the proposed changes to the Building Regulations in
2022. They are therefore proposing the use of air source heat pumps, and the
scheme would exceed current local requirements. A condition will require approval
of details to evidence the scheme has complied with local policy.

Neighbours amenity

5.26 The only design change affecting neighbours compared to the previous
application is beneficial, where less development is proposed in the south east
corner and soft landscaping has been added. The proposed building is of
comparable height to the apartments to the west. It would be some 3.8m from the
boundary, set in landscaping. The existing and proposed developments’ outward
facing elevations would be orientated perpendicular to each other; the proposed
development would not be over-dominant or over-bearing and there would be no
undue impact on neighbour’s amenity.

5.27 The development would not lead to direct overlooking of the apartments to the
west. Habitable windows to dwellings at Heron / Dunlin House are either north /
south facing or are over 22m from the proposed building. The separation distances
between habitable rooms would exceed the 18m between habitable rooms currently
at Heron / Dunelm House.

5.28 The west elevation proposed would overlook the communal grounds used
either for car parking or as amenity space at Dunlin / Heron House. The communal
spaces are overlooked by multiple properties and this situation is fundamentally

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 21

unchanged as a consequence of the proposed development. This arrangement is
not objected to.

Biodiversity

5.29 The NPPF states decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and
local environment by minimising the impacts on, and providing net gains for
biodiversity.

5.30 Biodiversity gains recommended are bat and bird boxes. Along with the
landscaping proposed there would be net gain as required under the NPPF. These
benefits can be secured by condition. The site has been inspected by an Ecologist
and no evidence of bat roosts or bird nesting were detected on-site. As a precaution
an informative will reference the method statement for works set out in the
Preliminary Bat Roost Assessment issued, in case bats are discovered.

Highway safety and sustainable travel

5.31 The NPPF states that in assessing applications it should be ensured that:

- Opportunities to promote sustainable transport included where appropriate.
- Safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users.

- Any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms
of capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively
mitigated to an acceptable degree.

5.32 The NPPF states “development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or
the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe”.

Sustainable travel

5.33 By virtue of the site’s location and the type of use proposed the majority of
associated journeys would be by sustainable modes of travel. The site provides 3
car parking spaces; 2 are accessible. Previously the site was dominated by parked
cars, including on the landscape strips and footpaths around the site. The scheme
proposes enhanced facilities for pedestrians and cyclists, by widening the footpath
and providing a cycle route segregated from the road.

5.34 Cycle parking provision proposed is approx. 50% with space identified in the
courtyard for extra spaces (up to 72%) subject to demand. A plan showing the
spaces set out demonstrates the layout is fit for purpose and providing nine
oversized spaces. Monitoring of cycle use and promotion of such would be ongoing,

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 22

via the required travel plan. The provision is in a secure location and convenient to
access. Further to this there is visitor parking adjacent James Street (near the main
entrance) and within the courtyard. The provision is acceptable; monitoring of cycle
use at other student developments evidences that operationally this is sufficient (the
applicant was responsible for the Gray’s Wharf PBSA at Percy’s Lane. At that site
monitoring evidences no more than 10% of students own cycles).

Access — servicing / waste

5.35 Condition 23 requires site management in respect of waste collection; to
ensure waste is placed out for collection at the appropriate time, stored internally at
all other times. The applicants have confirmed a private company would undertake
waste collection (more regular collections are required than the Council service due
to the size of the bin stores). There is one central communal store which residents
would be required to use. In respect of travel distances to the store, the developer
has advised the on-site management will be able to assist residents if required.

Impact on the network

5.36 There are no objections to the scheme in terms of effect on the road network.
The proposed use will generate significantly less traffic than the current use,
reducing the car parking provision from approximately 100 down to 3. Traffic
generated from the proposed use will be associated with servicing and beginning
and end of term arrangements. As is typical of purpose built student
accommodation, within or at the edge of the city centre, the scheme only provides
car parking for accessible use, or associated with servicing. Students are advised in
advance of arrival schemes are car free and through the travel plan alternative
modes of travel is encouraged.

Public protection

5.37 Section 15 of the NPPF, regarding the natural environment advises that
planning decisions should contribute to the natural and local environment by
preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil,
air, water or noise pollution. Paragraph 186 states opportunities to improve air
guality or mitigate impacts should be identified, such as through traffic and travel
management, and green infrastructure provision and enhancement.

Contamination

5.38 Any permission for the site would be subject to standard conditions for a full
site investigation to determine appropriate remediation that would require
implementation.

Noise and Air quality

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 23

5.39 The site is close to Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA), along Lawrence
Street and the inner ring road. The proposed use would have significantly less
associated vehicle movements compared to the existing use and can only be
beneficial to air quality.

5.45 In terms of noise generation the proposed use also raises no issues. A
condition would require a student management plan; to cover items such as noise
and anti-social behaviour. Public comments noted that future residents may cut
through the land to the west if travelling to or from Foss Islands Road. This could be
deterred through management. The route using the public highway via James
Street / Leake Street is reasonably direct considering the likely destination of travel
by residents of the proposed scheme.

Archaeoloqgy

5.46 The site is within the City Centre Area of Archaeological Importance. NPPF
paragraph 194 states that “where a site on which development is proposed includes,
or has the potential to include, heritage assets with archaeological interest, local
planning authorities should require developers to submit an appropriate desk-based
assessment and, where necessary, a field evaluation”.

5.47 On-site Archaeology, who undertook evaluation at the former WMC site to the
south, have devised an approach to evaluation to enable assessment of the impact
of the proposed development on the archaeological deposits. Measures would be
explored to achieve physical or in-situ preservation of any significant remains.
Where destruction is unavoidable, a scheme of archaeological mitigation will be
undertaken in order to achieve preservation ‘by record’.

Flood Risk & Drainage

5.48 The proposed use is appropriate in this location as the site is not in flood zones
2 or 3.

5.49 The NPPF in paragraph 167 establishes that when determining any planning
applications, flood risk elsewhere should not be increased and sustainable drainage
systems be incorporated, unless there is clear evidence that this would be
inappropriate. The local approach following the NPPF, in policy ENV5, is that
existing surface water rates are evidenced and reduced by 30%. It also applies the
sustainable drainage hierarchy.

6.0 CONCLUSION

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 24

6.1 The presumption in favour of sustainable development in paragraph 11d of the
NPPF applies to this application. This means permission should be granted unless
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole.

6.2 Officers are content the amendments made to the application address the
reasons for refusal of the previous application identified by the planning committee.
The concerns of overdevelopment of the site, lack of public realm enhancements
and wider benefits are addressed; by the reduced amount of development,
increased amount of public amenity space proposed and the junction improvements,
combined with wider footpaths, which would make the area more attractive and
pedestrian friendly. It has been evidenced the development would provide adequate
levels of amenity for its future occupants (taking into account room/cluster sizes and
provision of amenities).

6.3 NPPF paragraph 123 states Local Planning Authorities “should support
proposals to use retail and employment land for homes in areas of high housing
demand, provided this would not undermine key economic sectors or sites or the
vitality and viability of town centres”. The scheme is acceptable in principle when
assessed against the NPPF, taking into account need for the proposed use and the
sustainable location. In respect of the former use of the site, the business has
relocated to a preferable site. There are favourable sites where the employment
needs of the city, over the emerging plan period, can be accommodated. The
scheme accords with local policy for the economy and student accommodation.

6.4 The proposed development ranges in height from 3-5 storey. This building scale
Is comparable to the development to the west and would not be excessive in this
location. There is no harm to the setting of the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area. Technical matters are addressed (using planning conditions where
necessary). There would be no undue effects on neighbours and a favourable effect
on the highway (and setting in this respect) compared to the former use. Approval is
recommended; no adverse impacts of the scheme are identified, that would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the
policies in the NPPF taken as a whole.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Site plan GA
Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 25

ACY401V305-400-1101-2101 PO5

Site plan - planting areas
ACY401V305-400-1101-4401 P06

Cycle store
ACY401Vv305-402-0000-2101 P02

Proposed floor plans

ACY401V305-501-1101- drawings 2101 P05, 2102 P04, 2103 P04, 2104 P04, 2105
P04, 2106 P04

2401 P04

Proposed elevations
ACY401V305-501-3100- drawings 2101 P04, 2102 P04, 2103 P02
ACY401V305-501-3101- drawings 2201 P04, 2202 P02, 2203 P02, 2204 P02

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Times of construction

The hours of construction, loading or unloading on the site shall be confined to 8:00
to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 9:00 to 13:00 Saturday and no working on Sundays or
public holidays.

Any working outside of the permitted hours is subject to prior approval in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. (Any requests to work outside of the permitted hours
shall contain justification and details of practical measures to avoid noise
disturbance).

Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents.
4  Construction management

Prior to commencement of development, a Construction Management Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved
plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The plan shall include
the following details -

- Dilapidation survey
A dilapidation survey of the highways adjoining the site which shall be jointly
undertaken with the Council's highways department and the results of which shall
be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

- Management of vehicular movements associated with construction and

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 26

contractor parking; to include scheduling of deliveries / construction vehicles.

- Wheel washing facilities and measures to prevent mud and detritus getting on to
the public highway.

- Measures to control the emission of noise, vibration, dust and dirt during
construction. To include a site specific risk assessment of dust impacts in line
with the guidance provided by IAQM (see http://iagm.co.uk/guidance/) and a
package of mitigation measures commensurate with the risk identified in the
assessment and measures to control noise during any piling of foundations. In
particular details will be required with regards to demolition and method of piling
for the proposed building.

- Means of preventing light pollution during construction, including the angling of
lighting and times of operation.

- Point of contact on site for enquiries.

- Complaints procedure.

The procedure should detail how a contact number will be advertised to the
public, and procedure once a complaint had been received. Written records of
any complaints received and actions taken should be kept and details forwarded
to the Local Authority every month during construction works by email to the
following addresses public.protection@york.gov.uk and
planning.enforcement@york.gov.uk

Reason: Specifically required prior to commencement, to protect the amenity of the
locality.

5 Drainage

Prior to development (excluding demolition and any enabling works) full details of
the site drainage shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in
writing. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
detalils.

Details shall include -

- Consideration given to the use of soakaways. Discharge to the public sewer shall
only be permitted if it can be evidenced soakaways are unsuitable (through an
appropriate assessment carried out under BRE Digest 365).

- The means by which the surface water discharge rate shall be restricted to a
maximum rate of 33.3 litres per second.

- Storage volume calculations, using computer modelling, which must
accommodate a 1:30 year storm with no surface flooding, along with no internal
flooding of buildings or surface run-off from the site in a 1:100 year storm.
Proposed areas within the model must also include an additional 30% allowance
for climate change. The modelling must use a range of storm durations, with both
summer and winter profiles, to find the worst-case volume required.

- Existing and proposed ground levels.

- Future management and maintenance of the proposed drainage scheme.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 27

Reason: In the interests of preventing increased flood risk, as required under NPPF
section 15, policy ENV5 of the 2018 Publication Draft Local Plan and the City of
York Council Sustainable Drainage Systems Guidance for Developers.

6  Archaeology

A programme of post-determination archaeological evaluation is required on this
site.

A) Following demolition an archaeological evaluation and post investigation
assessment shall be completed in accordance with the programme set out in the
approved Written Scheme of Investigation (On-Site Archaeology July 2021).
Provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and archive
deposition will be secured. This part of the condition shall not be discharged until
these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the
WSI.

B) A copy of a report on the evaluation and an assessment of the impact of the
proposed development on any of the archaeological remains identified in the
evaluation shall be deposited with City of York Historic Environment Record to allow
public dissemination of results within 6 weeks of completion or such other period as
may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

C) Where archaeological features and deposits are identified proposals for the
preservation in-situ, or for the investigation, recording and recovery of
archaeological remains and the publishing of findings shall be submitted as an
amendment to the original WSI. These details shall be submitted to the local
planning authority and approved prior to the commencement of construction. (There
shall be presumption in favour of preservation in-situ wherever feasible).

D) A copy of a report on the archaeological works detailed in Part C shall be
deposited with City of York Historic Environment Record within 3 months of
completion or such other period as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: In accordance with Section 16 of NPPF. The site lies within an Area of
Archaeological Importance. An investigation is required to identify the presence and
significance of archaeological features and deposits and ensure that archaeological
features and deposits are either recorded or, if of national importance, preserved in-
situ.

7  Archaeology foundation design

A foundation design and statement of working methods, which preserve at least
Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 28

95% of the archaeological deposits, is required for this site.

No development (apart from above ground enabling or demolition works) shall
commence until a foundation design and statement of working methods (including a
methodology for identifying and dealing with obstructions to piles and specification
of a level in metres AOD below which no destruction or disturbance shall be made to
archaeological deposits except for that caused by the boring or auguring of piles for
the building foundation) which preserve 95% of the archaeological deposits on the
site has been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In accordance with Section 16 of NPPF and City of York Historic
Environment Policy HE10. The site lies within an Area of Archaeological Importance
which contains significant archaeological deposits.

8 LC1 Land contamination - Site investigation

9 LC2 Land contamination - remediation scheme
10 LC3 Land contamination - remedial works

11 Nesting Birds

No vegetation clearance shall take place between 1st March and 31st August
inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of
suitable habitat for active birds' nests immediately before the works and provided
written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate
measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any such written
confirmation shall be submitted to the local planning authority in advance of any
vegetation clearance.

Reason: To ensure that breeding birds are protected from harm during construction.
All British birds, their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected
by Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended.

12  Sustainable design and construction

Prior to the commencement of development above ground level details of the
proposed building design, to reduce carbon emissions, shall be submitted to the
local planning authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

The details shall evidence either a reduction in carbon emissions of at least 28%
compared to the target emission rate as required under Part L of the Building
Regulations 2013 or compliance with any approved Part L document dated 2021 or

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 29

thereafter.

Reason: To fulfil the environmental objectives of the NPPF and support the
transition to a low carbon future, and in accordance with policy CC2 of the
Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

13 Materials

Prior to the commencement of development above ground level manufacturer's
details of the external materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Materials shall be made available for review
on-site, at the discretion of the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
carried out using the approved materials.

Sample panels of the brickwork to be used shall be erected on the site and shall
illustrate the colour, texture and bonding of brickwork/ stonework and the mortar
treatment to be used, and shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of building works within that phase. These
panels shall be retained until a minimum of 2 square metres of wall of the approved
development has been completed in accordance with the approved sample.

Reason: In the interests of good design, in accordance with section 12 of the NPPF.
14  Large scale details

Prior to the commencement of development above ground level details of the items
listed below shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
a) Typical sections at 1:20 or 1:10

b) Boundary treatment

C) Sub-station

Reason: In the interests of good design, in accordance with section 12 of the NPPF.
15 Noise

The sound attenuation measures detailed in the noise assessment - PDA Acoustic
Consultants report ref J003462-5141-ECE 02 dated September 2021 shall be fully
implemented prior first occupation of the development hereby permitted. The
measures shall be permanently retained thereafter.

Reason: To protect the amenity of residents from externally generated noise and in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 130.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 30

16  Highways works

Prior to first occupation / use of the development hereby permitted redundant
dropped kerbs shall be replaced by footpaths to match adjacent levels and the
highway improvement works (junctions re-modelled and widening of footpath as
shown on site plan GA drawing 400-1101-2101 P 05) shall be implemented in
accordance with the aforementioned site plan drawing.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to encourage sustainable modes of
travel in accordance with sections 9 and 12 of the NPPF.

17  Provision of hard landscaping / access / servicing

The development shall not be occupied until the areas of hard landscaping,
servicing areas and access points have been provided in accordance with the
approved site plan drawing 400-1101-2101 PO5.

Reason: In the interest of good design and ensuring the safe and free passage of
traffic on the public highway.

18 Landscaping

The development shall not be occupied until there has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscaping scheme
which shall illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees and shrubs.
This scheme shall be implemented within a period of six months of the completion of
the development. Any trees or plants which die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased, within five years of completion of the development, shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless
alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety,
suitability and disposition of species within the site in the interests of the character
and appearance of the area.

19  Secure by Design measures

The development shall not be occupied until details of the following measures have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The site
shall operate in accordance with the approved measures at all times.

- Boundary treatment.

- Access control measures.

- Security measures for doors / windows (recommended opening restrictors fitted
to ground floor windows) and cycle storage.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 31

Reason: In accordance with NPPF paragraph 130f to create places that are safe,
inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high
standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder,
and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion
and resilience.

20 Biodiversity

The development shall not be occupied until a scheme for providing biodiversity net
gain has been submitted to the local planning authority, approved in writing and
implemented in accordance with the approved details. The scheme shall provide for
at least -

- At least 2 bat boxes, located on the south, east or west elevations and at least
3m above ground level.

- At least 2 bird boxes located at least 3m from ground level and located away from
prevailing wind, rain and sunlight.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, in accordance with Paragraph 174 d) of the NPPF.

21 Electric vehicle charging facilities

The development shall not be occupied until a minimum of 1 Electric Vehicle
Recharging Point has been provided on site which is accessible from the car parking
spaces on-site. The charging point shall incorporate a suitably rated 32A 'IEC
62196' electrical socket to allow ‘Mode 3' charging of an electric vehicle. In addition,
a minimum of 1 additional parking bay shall be identified for the future installation of
additional Electric Vehicle Charging Point. This additional bay shall be provided with
all necessary ducting, cabling and groundwork to facilitate the addition of Electric
Vehicle Charge Points in the future, if required (passive provision). The Electric
Vehicle facilities shall be retained thereafter and reasonably maintained at all times
and be available for the charging of electric vehicles.

Reason: To promote and facilitate the uptake of electric vehicles on the site in line
with the Council's Low Emission Strategy (LES) and NPPF paragraph 112.

22  Cycle and bins provided and retained
The development shall not be occupied until the cycle and bin storage has been
provided in accordance with the approved ground floor plan drawing 501-1101-2101

P05 and cycle storage drawing 402-0000-2101 P 02. The facilities shall be retained
for such use at all times.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 32

Reason: To promote sustainable transport and in the interests of good design in
accordance with section 9 of the NPPF.

23  Site management

The development shall not be occupied until a management and occupation plan for
the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall operate in accordance with the approved
management and occupation plan at all times. The plan shall detail the following -

- Single occupancy only for the studios/bedrooms.

- Maintenance of servicing and waste collection facilities / arrangements for
managing waste collection (it is noted that a private waste collection service is
required because the bin stores are of inadequate size based on Council
standards).

- Provision of staff on-site.

- Management of the outside amenity space in the interests of avoiding noise
disturbance.

- Ongoing management and maintenance of landscaping and open space

- Strategy for dealing with any complaints from the public.

- Measures to ensure on-site staff will monitor excessive noise and raise issues
with residents.

- That the student tenancy agreements include clauses relating to anti-social
behaviour.

- Management of car parking within and adjacent to the site.

- Arrangements for minimising disturbance during arrival/departure at beginning
and end of term time. This shall include details of the site operators
responsibilities in terms of co-ordinating arrivals and departure times for residents
and the associated policing operations on-site / preventing indiscriminate parking
locally.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and highway safety.
24  Travel Plan

Within six months of first occupation of the development hereby permitted a Full
Travel Plan, prepared by the site operator, shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval in writing. The site shall thereafter be occupied in accordance
with the aims, measures and outcomes of said Travel Plan as approved.

The plan shall adhere to National Planning Policy Guidance, in providing objectives,
monitoring and meeting the identified objectives. It shall include details of the Travel
Plan co-ordinator and details for monitoring cycle usage and providing extra facilities
subject to demand. Results of annual travel surveys shall be submitted annually to
the authority's travel plan officer for approval.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 33

Reason: To ensure that traffic flows from the site can be safely accommodated and
to promote the usage of sustainable means of transport. To encourage sustainable
modes of travel in accordance with NPPF paragraph 113.

25 Communal uses

The communal amenity space for occupants shall be provided in accordance with
the approved floor plans and site plan prior to first occupation and retained for
communal uses at all times.

Reason: In the interests of good design and amenity.
26  Student Accommodation only

The development hereby approved shall be occupied only as student housing
accommodation. No person other than a student registered with, and engaged in, a
course of full time further or higher education or a delegate registered with and
attending a part time educational course or conference within the City of York
administrative boundary shall occupy any part of the development at any time.

The owner, or site operator shall keep an up to date register of the name of each
person in occupation of the development together with course(s) or conference(s)
attended. The register shall be available for inspection by the local planning
authority on demand at all reasonable times.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in order to control the future occupancy of
the development, as otherwise the development would involve other requirements in
order to be NPPF compliant, such as the inclusion of affordable housing.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. BATS

In the unlikely event that bats are discovered during works the developers attention
is drawn to the method statement provided in the Preliminary Bat Roost Assessment
by Wold Ecology July 2021.

2. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH
In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome: through the use of planning conditions.

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 34

Contact details:
Case Officer:  Jonathan Kenyon
Tel No: 01904 551323

Application Reference Number: 22/00367/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 35

3 James Street York YO10 3WW
22/00367/FULM

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

Depot E:]
\ ===
I N o I
— -
o == e - o
L] . :
Wor
A
Sub St
= ; = .
é 1to 21
nlin House
1 4
E|[Sub Sta S»Warehouse PvA
. L) (]
1to 24 o
1to9 10 to 21 "
H Hodse .5
. S
[ =1}
b
N 27 \ z : i
X IN : TE, 4 E L
Yard i _—
m 5
Mue| 1, —
ke Apartme :,\
7
PH
[N 73 DD —
H _l
17 lub, =
27 —
7 Shemt -
)
P 9 S Church
13:
elter 61 69
War, LA
R dBdy ~AWREN T (g \
Block A MANOAD
> o ’ L S a Y
LR : L~
Scale : 1:1358
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright 2000.

Department |Directorate of Place
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 25 April 2022

) . SLA Number
Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee

To be held on Thursday 5" May 2022

/€ abed



22/00367/FULM — Alton Cars York Ltd, 3 James Street,
York

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site for purpose-built student
accommodation with up to 303no. bedrooms, associated communal facilities, car parking and
landscaping (resubmission)

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

8¢ abed



K00m N | |
| ! - | 3
| | : P
""...___ -— " " —_— \ | w{
. . f—4 = =i | — T | - |
Site Location Plan - Context | =)
| |
\" = pRyeTe ST
| ITVINGTON TERRACY
O o —— )=\ et b o et A i - "b“'
120m o
= w2l — 1 {
ke Hanos I\ e L1 |
i “
TR SR
1nH } LR
Hi3eban \" Warehouse
aw 5 \ - 2=
[ 1 S h=
mid ‘ 3
- | Il By
. Ww 5 o v A % i
&tum | 12 0 " o
- — s 2 n 2 & | [ r
- I ! Y| [ e R
If 1 rpi 2 v (1 !
| v a N |
ik —1c 1P . " > | _— -
= [ Er— Mummmmu.! g\
5 { =L - -
— b}
' i . |
i Sy *
/ | | el T z
P | {1 3 ( A L - M“""!ﬁp‘ .
\ ° é‘} [ > T |
' 8 218 & \
o ;u 2 i | ! | ’
e 151 o L 5 SO o ! \ |
w— T 21 f |
- i - 4 - ] vy =
= saelier L - 1y !
21 " e Sy —— | Chan ;
PRLN T = L)
== — et '
—For s : l - ]
= s = < LR
v [T |
Ld - L —
[ 33 100m 150 200m
Scale 11250

Y,

!
\ CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

whole or part is prohibited without the

Map area bounded by: 461157,451349 461357,451549. Produced on 24 July 2020 from the OS National Geegraphic Database. Reproduction in
permissica of Ordnance Servey. © Crown copyright 2020. Supplied by UKPhnaingMaps.com a
licansed OS partner (100054135). Unique plan refecence: pdbuk/$84914/657786

Context-Location Plan-Survey (OS) 300-1100-11
Scale - 1:1250; of vork Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

6€ abed



Site Photographs

0t abed

\
g CITY OF

YORK Looking towards West side of Site Side Elevation of Apartment block to West

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022 4

V.



Site Photographs

\ \
\§ J
\

4—-—-"% CITY OF

YORK Side Elevation of Apartment Block to West James Street junction with Elvington Terrace

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022 5

V.



Site Photographs

4—--“":% CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

James Street Frontage

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

2 abed



Proposed Site Plan

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Y,

Elvington Terrace

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

¢ abed



Elvington Terrace

Site Plan with Separation
Distances

1to 21
Dunlin House

1to 24
Heron House

\
g CITY OF

YORK &

COUNCIL

Y,

17 abed



Proposed Elevations North & West

By st
or s bir

o aimiar

Lt

Aenza

501-3104-21

SR D gy rarde I e
o § Ss Cabimse 7902
ot il o, s ot dmlae
ey

o
)

Q

)

mamm=s  ppmme a1

CITY OF

Bldg-Elevation 03-GA
Yo R .

COUNCIL

501-3103-21

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022




Proposed Elevations South & East

Matrd FadTar axts
G Wi rtngar ClayCouny Pantls
Browrsmult stk

e miar
g bato Crowber asgh
Mtic

Brown-muli stock
Bui-grucy it g bk Crowbaoigh
or simalar st |nl¢l\4‘.'\l1. itk it
or aimilar

T

i

'

501-3102-21

Matusrsd Rad Tamacona

Ernwremli 3 bk
gy Weirararger

Crangumal sock
g Batok Crowbaragh Bla-grey sl
Clay Courty Pantla [ ‘or smir

o smilar or smikr

o abed

Bidg-Elevation 01-GA
CITY OF Scale -

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

10



Elvington Terrace

L

Proposed Ground Floor Plan A

g k< ple

T

\ 8
Q‘ CITY OF

YORK |

COUNCIL [ "t'a?mwmg_;s_t_h May 2022
%MM .m‘:f«a

Y,

/v abed



Proposed Upper Floor Plan

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

|

City of York Council Planning Commitiee Meeting - 5th I\/Ia}{,2622

e

f...

s

12

g abed



[
Proposed Top Floor Plan (Within Roof)

X /T
oo
- S \ |1
— / I
i = = ! |
U - \ ) —
— - :l 'ﬂ_l o -II rI— ‘llr
F - | g __———r-i—‘.T B ‘ii-__ \
). ')‘ ” 0 |II || 1 | \
S K- \ '
‘M.,‘_‘ :% ” _I'.Ill
- I |
171 '
= \ | |
a) I Y '
- "o

\
g CITY OF

COUNCIL City of York Council Planningi-éfé'rh'mittee Mee_t_irjg__—EEh._Ma{ZOZZ

drse

61 abed



Bedroom Layouts

Indicative Study Bed-Plan-Room Layouts  T01-1100-24 indicative Studio-Plan-Room Layouts T02-1100-24
Scale - 1:30 - Scale - 1:30 -

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

[=]

Indicative Study Bed (UA)-Plan-Room L ayouts T01-1100-24 indicative Studio (UA)-Plan-Room L ayouts To9-1100-24 indicative Studio (Room-in-Roof}-Plan-Room Layouts T03-1900-24
Scale- 1:30 - Scake - 1:30 - Scale - 1:30 -



Bedroom Layouts —
Top Floor

o

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

i

Room amas are measured o

Biug dashed ina denotes
_e—iinm of min. 2m haadmom
- haight

TG obed

Studio

Wy

City of Ybn‘k Council Planning Committee I\/Iektmg -

Bedroom Sulte-Fourth Floar Plan-Accommodation
Seale - 1:100

GO2-1104-43

|
5th M&gy 2022 15



Spatial standards must be deary prescribed and consistently applied. A comparison of
recently approved schemes with the Alton Cars proposal reveals the following:

STUDIO ROOMS
Other recently consented schemes have smaller studios, with only a token number of rooms
20 sq.m or above - 8.9.:

Alton Cars: min. 20 sq.m; 55% (30 out of 54) are 21 sg.mand above
Mecca: min. 18 sg.m; 17.5% (13 out of 74) are 20 sq.m and above
Frederick Hse: min. 17.2 sg.m; 0% are 20 sg.m and above

Aubrey Hse: min. 16 sg.m; 0% are 20 sq.m and above

NB: UA rooms are exduded because they are required to mest other standards

STUDY BEDROOMS

Study bedroom occupants have access to shared kitchen/living/dining rooms in each flat
(average 35.6 sq.m per flat at Alton Cars) in addition to their private bedroom.

Other recently consented schemes have the same or smaller study bedrooms and similar
shared living spaces - e.g.;

Alton Cars: min. 12.5 sq.m bedroom; plus 4.9 sq.m shared living space/study bed
Brickworks: min. 12.5 sg.m bedroom; plus 5.1 sg.m shared living space/study bed
Mecca: min. 12.5 sg.m bedroom; plus 4.7 sg.m shared living space/study bed

Aubrey Hse: min. 12,0 sq.m bedroom; plus 4.1 sq.m shared living space/study bed
Mansfield St min. 11.5 sg.m bedroom; plus 5.0 sg.m shared living space/study bed

NB: UA rooms are exduded because they are required to meet other standards

HMO BEDROOM STANDARD
Study bedrooms provided in the Alton Cars proposal are 25% larger than minimum
standards for HMO student accommodation prescribed by CYC - e.g.

Alton Cars: min. 8.2 sg.m
CYC Standard: min. 6.51 sq.m

NB: CYC HMO mesidual room area measurement exciudes en-suite bathrooms and unusabie
floor area occupied by door swings

ACCESSIBLE ROOMS

The Alton Cars proposal provides a minimum of one wheelchair-accessible bedroom for
every 20 bedrooms (5%), or part thereof as prescribed by Building Regulations ADM2 cl.
4.24g. Other recently consented schemes fall below this standard.e.q:

Alton Cars: 5.28% (16 out of 303 moms)
Mecca: 29% (8 outof 275 rooms)
Aubrey Hse: 3.7% (3 outof&1 rooms)
Plumbase: 3.6% (3 outof83 rooms)

Brickworks: 2.1%
Mansfield St 0%

(7 out of 326 rooms)
(0 out of 104 rooms)

%

CITY OF

COUNCIL

ALTON CARS

e
B mem T
e

e g Bt b e i g e i

OTHER RECENTLY APPROVED SCHEMES

ot

(7]
£
O
o
—
T
[4F)
m
==
©
2
W Min. Study Bed Size MECCA in. Study Bed Size BRICKWORKS Study Bed Size  AUBREYHSE  Min. Stdy Bad Size  MANSFIELD ST
[5eate - 150 . [eale-1:50 . ~1:50 - [cale - 1:50 -
=)
QD
Q
(9]
o1
= N
73]
£
s
o
m —
.8
T
3
ﬁ W Studio size _ Frederick House [0 Studio size  Aubrey House
[cale - 1:50 - [Scale - 1:50 -

YORK Bedroom Size compared with other Purpose Built Student Accommodation Schemes

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022 16



05101 3 Parkirgg { <t et
e el oo (eith Ky

5,08
5,08
3,04

-;l_l'-_*-“* A 4D +m+-_i A iﬂ* Al .l A .I'

ptaa_ g Al T A}

S
] »
R —— s
i Cyda Beraga Fubur Py odsea) Zom
Parking [Cyeles)-Ga 402190121 188 g-?
Scale - 1:50 -
Q
®
o1
w
Parking (Future Cycles)-GA 402-1102-21 - Site (Cycie Store-Section-GA 402-2101-21
Scale - 1:100 - o Scale - 1:50 -
y A
ZX®  city oF “
YORK eycle Storage
K COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022 17



302-4102-31 High Level-View 02 (NE)-Massing Model

lllustrating how varied roof prefiles in the new composition blend with surrounding roofscapes to -
reinforce the existing townscape with similar scale and forms vare

302-4101-31 High Level-View 01 (SE)-Massing Mode/

EREIL]
!
I

NNNNN townscape with similar scale and forms

Massing Models — High Level North East (L) and High Level South East (R)

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

Y,

lllustrating how varied roof profiles in the new composition blend with surrounding roofscapes to reinforce the existing

18



Park Massing Model

\ [ Ao
g CITY OF :

YORKE

COUNCIL

1D - 404-1101-21

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

19




VAL

Y
g
o
¥
=
]

IPREVIOUS PROPOSAL - App Ref: 21/02164/FULM |

Photomontage — Previous Scheme

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

20

9G abed



K
\ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

lil[!

'ﬁz’?’f{'/';,{:’.ff:

INEW PROPOSAL - App Ref: 22/00367/FULM |

Photomontage — Proposed Scheme

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

21

/S abed



IPREVIOUS PROPOSAL - App Ref: 21/02164/FULM |

Photomontage — Previous Scheme

.’-:Qf CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

22

gG abed



Page 59

o
N
ax § 8 8
R 1Y hooon I B 3
B -mmm %wm. At N R
ait oahll o ol @S i i
AN
(a\]
o
AN
>
©
. =
e
e}
[@)]
<
=
(D]
U [0}
L = £
N~ I
© c =
™ & 3
WL .ﬁm?ﬂ.&.r};f m S mu
N o =
N 5] 3
50 2
04 o £
o o) g
o = ©
< ol =
] _ >
- o ©
< 2
(7p] (@) @)
o 8
o c
e )
e =
(a8
W (@)
//‘ =
/,,,.«V///,, ﬁ m
— al

3
I
9




CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

INEW PROPOSAL - App Ref: 22/00367/FULM |

Photomontage — Proposed Scheme

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 5th May 2022

publighed PDF version to aonfien you are meferting % asment infor

Rod 1

San
Buo goy skt
ce sinsae

Clay Facing Brick

i ook
0§ Visinsdona
Buckerham Biond
ce e

wat4
Darkgooy ncar

&g 5o Colour 102
o smia

wals.
Rade

Craywhils rancu
©g. o Colour ¥29
o smia

WhndowsDoars and
Aol
PaietlPPC

RAL 024

or dimilee

| Mo Sy

Freacing by e s ananca s arciad o e recana
1m wih plarring oficar cormears racatvad Canopy over
i tpebivy

24

09 abed



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4a Alton Cars York Ltd, 3 James Street, York YO10 3WW [22/00367/FULM]
	Alton Cars York Ltd, 3 James Street, York [22/00367/FULM] Site Plan
	Alton Cars York Ltd, 3 James Street, York [22/00367/FULM] Presentation


